
 
Molalla City Council – Special Meeting Agenda   

Meeting located at: Molalla Adult Center   
315 Kennel Ave, Molalla, OR 97038 

December 17, 2014 
 
Business  meeting will begin at 7:00PM.  The Council has adopted Public Participation Rules. Public 
comment cards are available at the entry desk. Request to speak must be turned into to the Mayor prior to the 
start of the regular Council meeting. 
Executive Session After the meeting 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – 1,049th Regular Meeting 

A. Call the meeting to order  
B. Flag Salute and Roll Call 

 
2. COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENT 

A. Minutes: November 19, 2014 -  Motion to Approve 
B. Library Board Minutes – Info Only 

 
3. AWARDS, RECOGNITIONS & PRESENTATIONS  

A. Recognition of Councilors Boreth and Clark  
 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

5. NEW BUSINESS  
A. Item in Excess of $10,000 - Library Carpet Purchase – Diana Hadley 
B. Item in Excess of $10,000 – New Library Computers – Diana Hadley 
C. Award Approval - Stowers Rd, Heintz St. Grange Ave Roadway Rehabilitation - Jen Cline 
D. Brown & Caldwell Project Scope and Budget Approval – Jen Cline 
E. Approval of SDC Waterline Replacement and Section Street Improvement Project – Jen Cline 
F. Planning Commission Appointments 

 
6. CONTINUING BUSINESS 
7. RESOLUTIONS 
8. ORDINANCES   
9. PROCLAMATIONS  

 
10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. City Manager/Staff Reports –  Dan Huff  

 Town Hall Meeting  Recap December 10th   

 No Council meeting on December 24th due to the holiday 

 Council Support for CDBG Grant Opportunity 
 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 ORS 192.660(2)(f) to consider information or records that are exempt from disclosure by law. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 



Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla City Hall 

117 N. Molalla Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Wednesday November 19, 2014 

 

ATTENDANCE: Mayor Rogge, Present; Councilor Pottle, Present; Councilor 
Clark, Present; Councilor Thompson, Present; Councilor Griswold, Present; 
Councilor Boreth, Present; Councilor Cook, Present. 

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:  City Manager Dan Huff, Present; City Recorder 
Sadie Cramer, Present; Finance Director Heather Penni, Present; Public Works 
Director Jennifer Cline, Present. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENT:  

 A. Minutes – November 12, 2014 

Councilor Thompson made a motion to accept the minutes from November 12, 
2014 with amendments.  Councilor Griswold seconded.  Motion approved (7-0) 
Mayor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor 
Clark, Aye; Councilor Griswold, Aye; Councilor Boreth, Aye; Councilor Cook, 
Aye. 

NEW BUSINESS 

 A. Transfer Trout Creek Water Rights to the Molalla River 

PWD Cline explained that the original water right certificate was cancelled by the 
State of Oregon in lieu of issuing a new water rights permit at the intake location 
on the Molalla River.  Of the conditions that must be met, the City must install a 
flow monitor at the Trout Creek tributary.   

CM Huff stated that during the budget process it was discussed the need for the 
City to update its’ water rights.  There is funding in the budget to cover this. 

Mayor Rogge asked if there was an intake at Trout Creek.  She was advised that 
there is not currently an intake.  She asked why Trout Creek is an issue if we have 



always been using the Molalla River.  She was advised that was where the original 
certificate was issued. 

Councilor Clark clarified that $17,500 is be requested for the water rights and the 
cost of the flow monitor is $40,000.  PWD Cline stated that $40,000 was an 
estimate, the actual cost is $17,500. 

Councilor Clark also clarified that this will not increase the water supply, it does 
however bring the City into compliance. 

Mayor Rogge asked if 4CFS is adequate for the City’s needs.  She was advised that 
for now it is adequate.  CM Huff stated that it is based on population growth. 

Councilor Clark made a motion to accept the transfer of Trout Creek Water Rights.  
Councilor Griswold seconded.  Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Rogge, Aye; 
Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye; 
Councilor Griswold, Aye; Councilor Boreth, Aye; Councilor Cook, Aye. 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

 A. Resolution 2014-14: A Resolution of the Molalla City Authorizing 
Financing of Urban Renewal Projects 

FD Penni explained that this Resolution is needed since the City of Molalla is 
issuing a full faith in credit to the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency. 

Councilor Pottle asked that when the revenues start coming in, is there any way the 
priority list can be changed.  He was advised that once council sets the list, that is 
where the revenues will be spent.  The only way that the list can changed is an 
action from the Urban Renewal Agency Board. 

Councilor Pottle made a motion to adopt Resolution 2014-14.  Councilor Clark 
seconded. Motion approved (6-1) Mayor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; 
Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye; Councilor Griswold, Nay; Councilor 
Boreth, Aye; Councilor Cook, Aye. 

 



REPORTS & ANNOUNCEMENT 

CM Huff advised that a Town Hall meeting is scheduled for December 10, 2014 to 
discuss homeless/transient issues.   

CM Huff stated that he heard from DLCD that they have agreed to fund the 
development code re-write.  He also stated that the changes council has made in 
the past year contributed to the willingness of the DLCD to work with the City. 

Councilor Cook asked if the Chief of Police would be attending the Town Hall 
meeting.  He was advised that he would be in attendance. 

It was discussed that if a council meeting is needed in December, a special meeting 
will be called. 

Mayor Rogge thanked Councilor Boreth for his service on council.  She also 
thanked Councilor Clark for his service on council. 

Councilor Thompson thanked Councilor Boreth for his work on council.  He also 
thanked Councilors Boreth and Clark for acclimating him. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Councilor Pottle made a motion to enter into Executive Session.  Councilor Boreth 
seconded.  Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; 
Councilor Clark, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Griswold, Aye; 
Councilor Boreth, Aye; Councilor Cook, Aye. 

 

____________________________  __________________________ 

Sadie Cramer, City Recorder   Mayor Debbie Rogge 



Molalla Library Advisory Board 

Meeting Date:   10‐16‐2014 

Meeting brought to order by Paula Beck at 6:30 P.M. 

Members Present:  Paula Beck, Mary Gilson, Kelly Andrews, Sandy Nelson, Angela Patton                                     
 
Staff Present:  Diana Hadley 
 
The minutes from the September meeting were approved as read.   
 

 Director’s Report:  (See Diana if you didn’t receive one.) 
a) During Amnesty Week (November 1 – 8), up to $50 per card will be forgiven to allow people 

to use the library. 
b) We are going ahead and giving library card privileges to students without parental 

permission so that they will have access to databases but not internet as there are no filters 
on the library computers. 

c) “Color” day is team building day.  It is something the library is trying to surprise people and 
make it fun to come to the library.  Librarians and books will be present in color!  

 

 Old Business: 
a) We need a copy of the Strategic Plan for our November meeting.  We will then begin 

updating it in January as there is no meeting in December. 
b) All tables and chairs have been returned to the library. 

 
The next meeting will be on November 20, 2014, at the Molalla Public Library.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:25 P.M.  
 Submitted by Mary Gilson, Secretary. 
                
                
 
 
 
   









































 

 

City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jennifer Cline, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:  Dan Huff, City Manager                                               

Subject:  Award Approval for Stowers, Grange & Heintz – Roadway Improvement Project  

Recommendation:   Council Approval 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:     December 17, 2014 

Fiscal Impact:  Low Bid: $670,294.25

Background:   

In 2014 the City had chosen to allocate ODOT exchange funds along with City SDC funding to 

design and construct roadway improvements on Stowers Rd., Heintz St., and Grange Ave.  The 

design portion of the project was completed in October 2014 and placed on advertisement 

Friday, October 31st with bids Opening on Wednesday, November 19th.  The included 

document lists all the accepted bids with the apparent Low Bid of $670,294.25 submitted by 

Eagle‐Elsner. The bids were verified and the “Notice of Intent To Award” was published on 

November 25, 2014. The city recommends awarding the contract to Eagle‐Elsner, Inc. for the 

bid amount of $670,294.25. 

 

 
 









 

 

City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jennifer Cline, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:  Dan Huff, City Manager                                               

Subject: Brown & Caldwell – Scope of Services  

Recommendation:   Council Approval for Services 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:     November 19, 2014 

Fiscal Impact:  Not to Exceed $79,290

Background:   

To meet NPDES regulatory requirements and reduce or remove Inflow and Infiltration (I/I) 

impacts to the Sanitary Collections system, the City recommends approving the Brown & 

Caldwell ‐ Scope of Services in the included document.  The services include, but not limited to; 

project management, operation evaluation of the WWTP, biosolids site authorization 

assistance, engineering design analysis, DEQ documentation support, field training support, 

system recommendation reports and asset management development.   

The Scope of Services Expenditures for Fiscal Year (F/Y) 14/15 and 15/16 is anticipated as 

follows: 

F/Y – 2014/15  F/Y – 2015/16 (information only) 

Project Mgmt ‐ $6,570   Project Mgmt ‐ $6,570  

WWTP Evaluation ‐ $26,806   WWTP Evaluation ‐ $20,703  

Biosolids Assist ‐ $10,983  Biosolids Assist ‐ $0 

Irrigation Evaluation ‐ $6,570  Irrigation Evaluation ‐ $0 

I/I Support ‐ $28,448  I/I Support ‐ $52,017 

F/Y 14/15 Total ‐ $79,290  F/Y 15/16 Total ‐ $58,587 



Page 1 of 7 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

Phase 100. Project Management 
Objective: To assemble, manage, and lead a cohesive project team to execute the scope that 

is completed within the constraints of the budget and schedule and any 
amendments thereto. 

Activities: The following activities will be performed as part of the project management phase: 

• Organize and lead a kickoff meeting with the Client to review project scope, 
schedule, and budget, and discuss Client involvement, Client staff availability for 
assistance and training, and other items of importance to the Consultant or the 
Client. 

• Prepare a project management plan and schedule to provide the project team 
with details regarding project scope and execution. 

• Establish and follow a project quality assurance/quality control plan that includes 
senior technical review of all deliverables. 

• Manage work done by the project team, including subconsultants. This includes 
scheduling, workload planning, coordination, quality control, and invoicing. 

• Prepare and submit a monthly invoice with backup documentation and a 
progress report. 

• Prepare monthly progress reports or present information during progress 
meetings or conference calls to identify budget status, progress status, recent 
activities, and upcoming activities. 

Deliverables: Monthly invoices with progress reports 

Assumptions: This effort assumes the preparation of one additional amendment. 

Phase 200. Evaluation of Wastewater Treatment Facility 

Task 201.  Operational Evaluation and Report of Findings 

Objective: To conduct in Fiscal Year 2014-2015 (FY14/15) an evaluation of the operation of 
the treatment plant to identify areas where changes may result in improved 
operation and/or a reduction in the risk of incurring additional discharge permit 
violations in the future.  

Activities: The following activities will be performed as part of the task:  
• Assess previous discharge permit violations and attempt to identify the possible 

cause(s) for the violations by interviewing plant operations personnel regarding 
abnormal influent flow and load conditions, unusual operating circumstances, 
equipment out of service, and other similar situations. Correlate the permit 



 

Page 2 of 7 

violations to specific unit processes and assess whether the violation may have 
been caused by capacity limitations, system inefficiencies (e.g., dead spots in 
aerated basins, hydraulic issues such as turbulence, foam/scum removal 
problems), operational practices, or other conditions. If causes of permit violations 
are identified through these assessments, suggest corrective measures that could 
be implemented to reduce the potential risk of incurring additional violations in the 
future. 

• Assess plant operations to determine whether practices can be changed to 
increase the reliability of meeting NPDES effluent water quality requirements. 
This involves a 1-day trip to the plant to: 

o meet with plant operations staff and tour the facility  

o discuss and observe operational practices  

o review the plant alarm system and identify possible improvements, if any  

o review any known problem areas that may affect plant operations 

o review operations data 

o understand plant staffing level 

o undertake a general review of the overall maintenance program and practices 

o gain an understanding of the plant physical features 

o review plant monitoring procedures and techniques 

Deliverables: Stand-alone letter report with findings and recommendations 

Assumptions: One meeting will be held between the Client and the Consultant to present the letter 
report. 

 

Task 202. Analysis of Current Operating Conditions 

Objective: To perform in Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (FY15/16) a review of the City of Molalla 
Facility Plan, operating data, DEQ documents, and O&M Manual to assess current 
operating conditions. Identify where improvements within the wastewater treatment 
plant can be made to reduce the potential for future discharge permit violations. 
This effort does not include preparing an update of the Facility Plan. 

Activities: The following activities will be performed as part of the task:  
• Review the 2000 Facility Plan to understand the basis for recommended 

improvements. 

• Analyze influent data (provided by the Client) to determine whether actual 
influent flow and loads are materially different from the conditions that were 
projected in the Facility Plan for 2015. 

• Determine whether the recommendations in the 2000 Facility Plan remain 
applicable. If conditions are materially different, develop the steps that should be 
taken to update the Plan. If conditions are not materially different from the 
conditions that were projected in the 2000 Facility Plan, identify which of the 



 

Page 3 of 7 

recommended physical improvements may make sense to implement, if they 
have not been implemented to date. 

• Organize, and review the following operational data and documents: 

o daily monitoring reports (DMRs) 

o plant operating data not already on DMRs (provided by Client) 

o Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) inspection reports, if any 

o operations and maintenance manual 

• Assess reliability and redundancy against DEQ standards and standard practice, 
particularly in areas where lack of reliability could impact the ability to meet 
effluent discharge limits. 

• Review operator certification and operator training issues and suggest corrective 
measures, if any are needed. 

Deliverables:  Stand-alone letter report with findings and recommendations 

Assumptions: This effort does not include process modeling. 

Phase 300. Biosolids Authorization Assistance 
Objective: The Consultant will assist the Client in the Client’s attempt to secure authorization 

from the DEQ to land apply Client’s biosolids at the Piuser site. 

Activities: The following activities will be performed relative to the Piuser site: 

• Tour the land application site and meet with Mr. Piuser to review operational 
logistics, crop selection, and project timing. 

• Secure a land application agreement signed by both Mr. Piuser and the Client. 

• Locate sensitive site features that may require setbacks (e.g., homes, wells, 
public roads, drainages, property lines). 

• Tour the site with DEQ staff. This step will likely be necessary because the Piuser 
site has not previously been authorized to the Client. 

• Compile public notice information (e.g., draft letter to neighbors, a list of 
surrounding landowners and their addresses or home locations) and provide to 
Client so Client can complete the public notification activities. Public notice 
activities will be limited to completing personal site visits with nearby neighbors 
and mailing information packets to individuals who own tax lots immediately 
adjacent to the Piuser site. If DEQ requires additional public notice activities 
beyond these, then additional funds may be needed to complete the notification 
process. 

• Submit all required paperwork to DEQ so that authorization of the Piuser site can 
be transferred from the City of Canby to the Client. 

Client’s Role: Completion of the above-listed tasks requires that the following supporting tasks be 
completed by the Client: 

• Complete any updates to the Client’s Biosolids Management Plan (BSMP) that 
may be required by DEQ. These may include but not be limited to updating the 



 

Page 4 of 7 

biosolids sampling plan, conducting additional biosolids sampling and testing, 
and receiving approval to apply biosolids to a wider range of crops than only 
“pastured sites,” which are listed in the Client’s BSMP from September 2013. 

• Provide the Consultant with hauling and application records for the biosolids 
removal operations completed in 2014 at the Brad Johnson site. These records 
must include gallons of biosolids applied at the site, total solids data for the 
applied biosolids, acreages spread, and a site map showing the final area that 
received biosolids. 

• Provide the Consultant with a copy of the biosolids authorization letter that the 
Client received from DEQ for land applying biosolids at the Brad Johnson site. 

• Provide the Consultant with a copy of the DEQ authorization letter that the City of 
Canby received for land applying Canby biosolids at the Piuser site. 

• Provide the Consultant with a letter from the City of Canby stating the City’s 
desire to transfer DEQ authorization of the Piuser site from Canby to the Client. 

• Provide the Consultant with a summary of completed public notice activities for 
the Piuser site (e.g., dates that public notice was completed, comments received 
from surrounding neighbors, etc.) so that this information can be submitted to 
DEQ by Consultant. 

Assumptions: Although reasonable efforts will be made to secure an authorization letter for the 
Piuser site before July 15, 2015, the Consultant cannot guarantee this outcome. 
The most sensitive aspect of the authorization process will be public notification, 
and the Consultant has no way of knowing if significant public resistance to the 
proposed site authorizations will be encountered. 

 Phase 400. Irrigation Evaluation at Coleman Ranch  
Objective: The Consultant will evaluate irrigation practices at the Coleman Ranch, which 

consists of two sites listed as “North Coleman” and “South Coleman.” The objective 
of this work phase is to develop site-specific checklists that are operator-friendly and 
promote operations that are consistent with the Client’s Recycled Water Use Plan 

Activities: The following activities will be performed relative to evaluating irrigation practices 

• Meet with Coleman Ranch operators and/or Client staff who are familiar with the 
irrigation system at the Coleman Ranch. Tour the site to observe the locations of 
irrigation risers, irrigation equipment, site features requiring setbacks (e.g., wells, 
homes, drainages), and the location of all soil moisture blocks and piezometers. 

• Review daily recordkeeping logs maintained by the operators. Recommend 
additional or revised recordkeeping practices as needed. 

• Develop site specific operator checklists for both North Coleman and South 
Coleman by May 15, 2015. 

Client’s Role: Completion of the above-listed tasks requires that the following supporting tasks be 
completed by the Client: 

• Provide the Consultant with examples of daily record logs that are maintained for 
tracking irrigation rates and management, including daily inspection checklists 
and maintenance logs.



 

Page 5 of 7 

• Provide the Consultant with a map of the Coleman Ranch that shows the 
locations of all irrigation risers that have been recorded with GPS coordinates by 
the Client. 

Phase 500. Inflow and Infiltration (I/I) Characterization Support  
Task 501.  FY14/15 I/I Support 

Objective: The Consultant will assist the Client with developing an I/I characterization plan and 
preparing a long-term I/I reduction plan. Consultant will provide support for 
implementation activities taking place during FY14/15. 

Activities: The following activities will be performed relative to this phase: 

• Assist with finalizing the City of Molalla I/I Assessment and Reduction Plan for 
approval by DEQ, as required by the Client’s NPDES permit.  

• Assist the Client with selection of asset management software and preparation 
for data integration. 

• Provide oversight, training, and technical services with respect to the various 
aspects of the I/I Assessment and Reduction Plan: 

o Assist the Client in selecting flow monitoring sites, including site selection and 
site grading.  

o Provide training and quality control of flowmeter site selection, installation, 
and quality control of data collection and analysis. Data quality control 
activities will be provided from January 1, 2015, to March 31, 2015. 

o Prepare for and conduct a 2-day training session on manhole inspection and 
pipeline inspection using the National Association of Sewer Service 
Companies’ (NASSCO) Manhole Assessment Certification Program (MACP) and 
Pipeline Assessment Certification Program (PACP). 

o Perform quality control visits of initial field manhole inspections, which will be 
performed by the Client’s staff. 

Task 502.  FY15/16 I/I Support 

Objective: The Consultant will assist the Client with developing an I/I characterization plan and 
preparing a long-term I/I reduction plan. Consultant will provide support for 
implementation activities taking place during FY15/16. 

Activities: The following activities will be performed relative to this phase: 

• Provide oversight, training, and technical services with respect to the various 
aspects of the I/I Assessment and Reduction Plan: 

o Provide guidance with setup and implementation of smoke testing, which will 
be performed by the Client’s staff. 

o Provide quality control visits of closed circuit TV (CCTV) inspections, which will 
be performed by the Client’s staff.



 

Page 6 of 7 

• Conduct hydrologic and hydraulic modeling to characterize the quantity and type 
of I/I from each basin under peak conditions. The model will characterize the 
peak wet-weather flows that are likely to occur once every 5 years. 

• Develop an I/I Reduction Prioritization Plan based on findings of field 
investigations, leakiest basins as determined by the modeling, and the most cost-
effective (prioritized by cost per gallon of I/I removed) basins for rehabilitation. 

Client’s Role: Completion of Phase 500 requires that the following supporting tasks be completed 
by the Client: 

• Provide the Consultant with geographic information system (GIS) files of the 
Client’s collection system. Data shall include horizontal and vertical data.  

• Provide the Consultant with 15-minute flow and rainfall data from January 1, 
2015, to March 31, 2015, and a 2-week dry weather period in August 2015. 

• Provide the Consultant with 15-minute flow data at the wastewater treatment 
facility from the same time periods as the flow data monitored in the collection 
system.  

• The Client will self-perform flow-monitoring, manhole inspections, smoke-testing, 
and CCTV inspections.  

• The Client will review and input manhole and pipe condition data into its asset 
management system.  

Assumptions: The following assumptions are made with respect to the above activities: 

• The Client’s GIS has horizontal and vertical data of the Client’s collection system. 
The Consultant will not provide surveying services.  

• The Client will provide the Consultant with 15-minute flow data from the 
wastewater treatment facility. 

• Eight flowmeters with a weekly data collection and analysis are assumed for the 
purposes of this scope and budget. 

• One meeting will be held between the Client and the Consultant at the City of 
Molalla to present the findings of the I/I characterization work. 

• Consultant’s work is limited to the above scope and per the assumed work 
breakdown structure on the following page:   

 



 

Page 7 of 7 

 
Rob Lee 

Supervising 
Engineer 

Jon Holland 
Vice 

President 

Justin Twenter 
Principal 
Engineer 

Amanda 
Mesick 

Engineer II 

Mike Prett 
Supervising 

Engineer 

Phase 500Phase 500Phase 500Phase 500    / Task 501/ Task 501/ Task 501/ Task 501    Anticipated HoursAnticipated HoursAnticipated HoursAnticipated Hours    

DEQ I/I PlanDEQ I/I PlanDEQ I/I PlanDEQ I/I Plan    6666    0.50.50.50.5        2222        

AM SoftwareAM SoftwareAM SoftwareAM Software    2222    0.50.50.50.5        8888    6666    

Flow MonitoringFlow MonitoringFlow MonitoringFlow Monitoring    29292929    2222        84848484        

 Site Selection 8   4  

 Install QC 8   4  

 Weekly Data QC 12   72  

 Data Transfer 1   4  

MACP/PACPMACP/PACPMACP/PACPMACP/PACP    20202020    1111             

Manhole Inspection QCManhole Inspection QCManhole Inspection QCManhole Inspection QC    8888    1111        8888     

              Subtotal (Task 501)Subtotal (Task 501)Subtotal (Task 501)Subtotal (Task 501)    65656565    5555        102102102102    6666    

     

    Phase 500 / Task 502Phase 500 / Task 502Phase 500 / Task 502Phase 500 / Task 502     

CCTV QCCCTV QCCCTV QCCCTV QC    8888            8888        

GIS DataGIS DataGIS DataGIS Data    8888            24242424        

I/I Reduction Plan Letter ReportI/I Reduction Plan Letter ReportI/I Reduction Plan Letter ReportI/I Reduction Plan Letter Report    20202020            40404040        

                    ModelingModelingModelingModeling    8888    5555    40404040    220220220220        

                                                        Subtotal (Subtotal (Subtotal (Subtotal (Task Task Task Task 502502502502))))    44444444    5555    40404040    292292292292        

      

                                                        Total (Phase 500)Total (Phase 500)Total (Phase 500)Total (Phase 500)    109109109109    10101010    40404040    394394394394    6666    

 

 

 



Exhibit B 

Cost Estimate 
 

 

 

 

 

City of Molalla -- Molalla Wastewater Legal Assistance - Amendment No. 2

La
ff

itt
e,

D
an

 E

H
og

an
,

Li
sa

 J

W
ils

on
,

S
te

ve
n 

A

F
as

th
,

W
ill

ia
m

 J

Le
e,

R
ob

er
t 

K

H
ol

la
nd

,
Jo

na
th

an
 R

P
au

ls
on

,
B

ry
an

 K

B
eg

gs
,

R
ob

er
t 

A

H
um

m
,

G
re

go
ry

 D

S
m

ith
,

A
la

n 
R

G
al

lu
p,

M
ar

a 
E

D
ra

he
im

,
D

an
ie

l P

C
as

te
lo

w
,

C
or

ey
 L

M
es

ic
k,

A
m

an
da

 M

V
as

qu
ez

,
Je

su
s 

E

T
w

en
te

r,
H

ay
es

 J

P
re

tt
,

M
ic

ha
el

 J

M
el

ce
r,

H
en

ry
k

R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n

T
ra

ve
l

S
up

pl
ie

s

Phase Phase Description PM PA

Total 
Labor 
Hours

Total 
Labor 
Effort

Total 
Expense 

Effort Total Effort

$226 $98 $248 $150 $204 $248 $248 $226 $226 $175 $112 $112 $98 $112 $98 $175 $204 $248
100 Project Management 4 20 0 0 40 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 78 13,140 0 0 0 0 13,140

101 FY14/15 Activities 2 10 0 0 20 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 39 6,570 0 0 0 0 6,570

102 FY15/16 Activities 2 10 0 0 20 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 39 6,570 0 0 0 0 6,570

Leave Blank and Protected

200 WWTF Evaluation 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 96 64 12 8 42 0 0 0 0 24 248 47,208 100 200 0 300 47,508

201 Operational Eval and Report 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 60 38 6 4 0 0 0 0 0 16 126 26,606 100 100 0 200 26,806

202 Analyze Operating Cond. And Report 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 26 6 4 42 0 0 0 0 8 122 20,603 0 100 0 100 20,703

Leave Blank and Protected

300 Biosolids Assist 0 0 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 71 10,826 0 157 0 157 10,983

**** Default Task 0 0 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 71 10,826 0 157 0 157 10,983

Leave Blank and Protected

400 Irrigation Evaluation 0 0 0 46 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 54 8,069 0 157 0 157 8,226

**** Default Task 0 0 0 46 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 54 8,069 0 157 0 157 8,226

Leave Blank and Protected

500 I/I Support 0 0 0 0 109 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 394 0 40 6 0 559 79,765 0 500 200 700 80,465

501 FY14/15 Activities 0 0 0 0 65 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 102 0 0 6 0 178 28,098 0 250 100 350 28,448

502 FY15/16 Activities 0 0 0 0 44 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 292 0 40 0 0 381 51,667 0 250 100 350 52,017

Leave Blank and Protected

GRAND TOTAL 4 20 0 112 151 10 2 0 96 64 22 11 42 394 12 40 6 24 1,010 159,009 100 1,014 200 1,314 160,323

The Hourly Billing Rates will be revised annually on a calendar-year basis.



 

 

City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jennifer Cline, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:  Dan Huff, City Manager                                               

Subject:  W 4th ST, W 4th ST & METZLER AVE WATERLINE REPLACEMENT 
AND SECTION ST RECONSTRUCTION ST 

Recommendation:   Council Approval for Engineering Funds for Design & Construction 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:     December 17, 2014

Fiscal Impact:  $35,800 for Design & $24,000 for Construction

Background:   
The City is proposing the following work to be completed by utilizing System Development Charges 

(SDC) funds for the Design and Construction of the following projects: 

 3rd St. between Lola and Berkley – replace approximately 275 linear feet of 4” water line with 6” – 

Construction completed by City Public Works. 

 4th St. between Hart and Metzler – replace approximately 325 linear feet of 4” water line with 6” 

– Construction completed by City Public Works. 

 Metzler Ave. between Hwy 211(Main Street) and W 7th Street – the estimated length is 2,350 

lineal feet, the work includes abandoning in‐place the existing 6" diameter steel, AC and PVC 

waterline and replacing it with an 8" PVC C900 waterline – Construction completed by City Public 

Works. 

 Section St. between Hart A venue and S. Molalla A venue, includes full street reconstruction to 

City Local Street Standards that is composed of curb and sidewalks on both sides, sanitary sewer 

and storm collection system upgrade to a drainage outlet or existing storm system, reconstruction 

of Hart Avenue and Section Avenue intersection. We assume the water infrastructure is in 

acceptable condition. The approximate length of this component is 700 lineal feet. 

Included with this proposal is the cost estimate provided by Curran‐McLeod and the SDC 

Methodology.  In addition, the improvements for Meltzer will address the pavement failure in the 

intersection at Hart Ave.  This was previously identified by council as a need for improvement.  









CITY OF MOLALLA - SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE UPDATE  19

CITY OF MOLALLA 
SANITARY SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

January 2014 
 

NO. 
PROJECT 

DESCRIPTION 
PROJECT 

PRIORITY 
ELIGIBLE 

COST 
CAPACITY 

EDU 
SDC COST 
PER EDU 

Collection System Improvements: Total Design Capacity 4.0 MGD, 5,008 EDU  

1 Collection System I/I Abatement 
& System Expansion (50% SDC 
eligible to increase capacity) 

1-20 yrs $310,000 5,008 $62 

2 Treatment Plant Trunk Upgrade - 
new 30" trunk from confluence of 
Bear Cr and  Toliver Rd trunk to 
the WWTP; new 24" from 
confluence to Toliver Rd and to 
Hwy 213 (Project C1) 

1-5 yrs $750,000 5,008 $150 

3 Bear Creek Trunk Upgrade - New 
21" trunk from Hwy 211 to Hwy 
213 (Project C4)  

6-10 yrs $560,000 5,008 $112 

Treatment System Improvements: Total Design Capacity 4.0 MGD MMDWF, 5,008 EDU 

4 Install 3 - 10 Hp Aspirating 
Aerators at west end of Lagoon 1 
(Project T-6)  1-5 yrs $62,000 5,008 $12 

5 Ph. I Solids Management - 
partition Lagoon 1 for sludge cell, 
(Project T-14), install wet sludge 
loadout, loading dock 

1-5 yrs $600,000 5,008 $120 

6 Ph. I Secondary Treatment 
Upgrades (Project T-13) create  
two aerated cells in Lagoon 1  

6-10 yrs $1,860,000 5,008 $371 

7 Phase I Effluent Disinfection 
Upgrades (Project T-15) Install 
Dechlorination Facilities 

6-10 yrs $475,000 5,008 $95 

8 Install Grit Removal Facilities  6-10 yrs $400,000 5,008 $80 

9 Staff Building, Locker/showers, 
Rest room, break/meeting room 

6-10 yrs $300,000 5,008 $60 

Planning & General Improvements - Benefit to the entire UGB 

10 Misc Upsizing and Oversizing  1-20 yrs $50,000 5,008 $10 

11 Planning & SDC Update 1-20 yrs $50,000 5,008 $10 

TOTAL  $5,417,000 TOTAL  $1,082 

jcline
Highlight



CITY OF MOLALLA - SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE UPDATE  25

 
CITY OF MOLALLA 

STORMWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
January 2014 

 
 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

ELIGIBLE 
COST 

CONSTRUCTION 
SCHEDULE 

PROJECT 

COST 

2nd St/Railway Alignment Storm System - 
15' to 60" pipeline and open channel Lola 
Avenue to Creamery Cr -Or Alternatively- 
15" to 48" pipeline Lola Avenue to 
Creamery Creek at Heintz Street  

100% 

1 - 5 yrs $1,770,000 

Detention at Mathias Ave & Creamery Cr. 
- Temporary detention on est 10 acres up 
to 3 feet deep, with controlled outfall 

100% 1 - 5 yrs $140,000 

Heintz Street Collector Replacement - 18" 
to 60" pipeline, Intercept Creamery Creek 
at Indian Oak Ct and divert Creek to 
Heintz Street, pipe on Heintz to Kennel 
Avenue.  

100% 6 - 10 yrs $1,725,000 

Shirley Street Drainage Improvements - 
24" pipeline to intercept Shirley St 
drainage and divert to Heintz Street 

100% 6 - 10 yrs $130,000 

Miller Street Drainage Improvements - 12" 
to 15" pipeline from Affolter Ave to N 
Molalla Avenue 

100% 6 - 10 yrs $65,000 

Sunrise Acres Drainage Improvements - 
12" pipelines on E 5th, 6th and 7th to 
Stowers lane 

100% 6 - 10 yrs $60,000 

Bear Cr Culvert Replacements, 20% 
Match, 12' Bridge at Mathias Rd; 14' 
Bridge at Molalla Ave; 15' Bridge at Ona 
Way; 18' Bridge at Highway 213  

100% 6 - 20 yrs $360,000 

Master Planning & SDC Update 100% 1 - 20 yrs $50,000 

System Upsizing and Oversizing 100% 1 - 20 yrs $100,000 

TOTAL CIP COST $4,400,000 

 



CITY OF MOLALLA - SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE UPDATE  31

The following table summarizes the improvements identified in the June, 2011 Transportation 
CIP as well as the projects discussed in the 2007 Downtown Development Plan.  All entries have 
been adjusted to the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index (ENR CCI) of 9,668 for 
December 2013 dollars.  

 
 

CITY OF MOLALLA 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

January 2014 
 

NO PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 PROJECT 

PRIORITY 
CURRENT 

 COST 

1 Toliver Road / HWY 213 Intersection 1-5 yrs $495,000 

2 Meadow Drive / Hwy 213 Intersection 1-5 yrs $225,000 

3 May Avenue, Between 5th and 6th Streets  1-5 yrs $115,000 

4 Section Street, Molalla to Hart Avenues 1-5 yrs $150,000 

5 S. Cole Avenue, south of Main Street 1-5 yrs $210,000 

6 Mathias Road / Freyrer Park Rd Intersection 1-5 yrs $150,000 

7 
Main St / Grange St / Berkley Intersection 
Safety Improvements 

1-5 yrs $30,000 

8 
Molalla Avenue / Main Street Intersection 
Improvement, Signalization 

6-10 yrs $245,000 

9 Molalla Avenue / Toliver Road Intersection 6-10 yrs $225,000 

10 Toliver Road Widening 6-10 yrs $3,050,000 

11 Leroy Avenue / Main Street Intersection 11-20 yrs $300,000 

12 Molalla Avenue / Shirley Street Intersection 11-20 yrs $225,000 

13 Mathias Road / Main Street Intersection  11-20 yrs $600,000 

14 
Molalla Forest Rd / Main St Intersection 
including Signalization Improvements  

11-20 yrs $500,000 

15 Downtown Bypass - Hwy 211 Widening 11-20 yrs $275,000 

16 Mathias Road Widening 11-20 yrs $1,950,000 

17 S. Ona Way, Main St to Molalla Forrest 11-20 yrs $625,000 

18 S. Lowe Road, Ona Way to Hwy 213 11-20 yrs $1,450,000 

19 
Ped & Bicycle Improvements ($25k/yr) 
Downtown Pedestrian District Improvements

1-20 yrs $500,000 

jcline
Highlight



CITY OF MOLALLA - SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE UPDATE  12

CITY OF MOLALLA 
WATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

BASED ON ENR CCI 9,668 
January 2014 

 
 

NO. 
PROJECT 

DESCRIPTION 
PROJECT 

PRIORITY 

ELIGIBLE 

COST 
EDU 

CAPACITY 
SDC COST 
PER EDU 

Source Development: Total Source Capacity 4.0 MGD (5,710 EDU)  

1. Transfer Trout Creek Water 
Rights to the Molalla River, 
Install Trout Creek flow  
monitoring Station 

1-5 yrs $40,000 5,710 $7.00 

2. Alternative Well Source 
Development in NW quadrant 

6-10 yrs $300,000 5,710 52.53 

3. Molalla River Intake Capacity 
Expansion to 4.0 MGD 

6-10 yrs $150,000 5,710 26.27 

Treatment Improvements: Total Ultimate Treatment Capacity 4.0 MGD (5,710 EDU) 

4. ECI Treatment Unit Process 
Piping Modifications, filter to 
waste, pumping equipment 

6-10 yrs $60,000 5,710 1.51 

5. HVAC Improvements for 
power distribution room and 
office /lab facilities 

6-10 yrs $15,000 5,710 2.63 

6. Molalla Forest Road / WTP 
Access Road Improvements 

6-10 yrs $200,000 5,710 35.03 

Distribution System Improvements: MDD of UGB Build-out is 2.83 MGD (4,040 EDU)  

7. 20" Parallel Transmission 
Piping, WTP to Adams 
Cemetery Road, est. 2,000 LF 

1-5 yrs $240,000 6,800* 35.29 

8. 1996 Master Plan CIP Distribution System upgrades to the EXISTING system: 

8.A Patrol Street - 700 lf of 6" 
from dead end to Hwy 211 1-20 yrs 33,600 4,040 8.32 

8.B Cole street - 750 lf of 6" from 
E. 4th to E. Main Street  1-20 yrs 36,000 4,040 8.91 



CITY OF MOLALLA - SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE UPDATE  13

 
 

8.C Debra Street - 350 lf of 8" N 
from Frances to 14" main  1-20 yrs 18,900 4,040 4.68 

8.D Frances Christopher link - 200 
lf of 6" Upgrade 1-20 yrs 9,600 4,040 2.38 

8.E Hood Street - 300 lf 6" South 
of 5th Street  1-20 yrs 14,400 4,040 3.56 

8.F Metzler Ave - 800 lf of 6" 
Section Street to 7th Street 1-20 yrs 38,400 4,040 9.51 

8.G 7th Street - 700 lf of 8" from 
Hart Street to S Molalla Ave 1-20 yrs  37,800 4,040 9.36 

8.H Toliver Road - 1,850 lf of 12" 
from Del Mar to Molalla Ave 1-20 yrs 144,300 4,040 35.72 

8.I Main Street - 6,350 lf of 12" 
from Hwy 213 to Shaver St 1-20 yrs 495,300 4,040 122.60 

9. 1996 Master Plan CIP Distribution System upgrades to the FUTURE system: 

9.A 
EW Grid 1 - 5,200 lf of 14" N 
Molalla Ave to Highway 213 1-20 yrs 478,400 4,040 118.42 

9.B 
EW Grid 2 - 5,200 lf of 10" N 
Molalla Ave to Meadowlawn 1-20 yrs 343,200 4,040 84.95 

9.C 
EW Grid 3 - 6,060 lf 10" 
Section St to Highway 213 1-20 yrs 400,000 4,040 99.01 

9.D 
School NS Grid 2 - 4,400 lf 
12" Main Street North 1-20 yrs 343,200 4,040 84.95 

9.E 
School NS Grid 2 - 900 lf 10" 
Main Street South 1-20 yrs 59,400 4,040 14.70 

9.F 
Western NS Grid 1 - 4,400 lf 
12" Main Street North 1-20 yrs 343,200 4,040 84.95 

9.G 
Western NS Grid 1 - 950 lf 
10" Main Street South 1-20 yrs 62,700 4,040 15.52 

9.H Del Mar Tie to N UGB - 2,450 
lf 12" water main 1-20 yrs 191,100 4,040 47.30 

9.I Highway 213 - 2,000 lf 12" 
Main Street to Toliver Road 1-20 yrs 156,000 4,040 38.61 

9.J Highway 213 - 1,500 lf 10" 
Main Street to South UGB 1-20 yrs 99,000 4,040 24.51 

9.K Big Meadows Tie N - 1,650 lf 
10" Meadows Dr to north grid 1-20 yrs 108,900 4,040 26.96 



CITY OF MOLALLA - SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE UPDATE  14

 

9.L Molalla Avenue - 1,600 lf 14" 
Miller St to north grid  1-20 yrs 147,200 4,040 36.44 

9.M 5th Street - 1,300 lf 14" 
Mathias Rd to Eckerd Ave 1-20 yrs 119,600 4,040 29.60 

Storage Improvements: Total Capacity 5.2 MG (6,800 EDU plus 0.4 MG Fire Storage)  

10. New 2.0 MG Reservoir & 
Jockey Pump Station per 
Master Plan (1996 ENR 5,620)

11- 20 yrs 1,740,000 6,800 25.59 

11. 1.2 MG Reservoir Safety & 
Access Hatch Improvements, 
exterior ground-level painting  

1-5 yrs 40,000 6,800 5.88 

Planning & General Improvements - Benefit to the entire UGB (4,040 EDU) 

12. Planning & SDC Updates 1-20 yrs 50,000 4,040 12.38 

13. Miscellaneous Pipeline 
Upsizing and Oversizing  1-20 yrs 150,000 4,040 37.13 

TOTAL $6,665,200 per EDU $1,150 
*Transmission line capacity was equated to the capacity of the storage system.  
 
 
W-IV.  WATER SYSTEM SDC IMPROVEMENT FEE CALCULATION 
  
The Improvement Fee is intended to quantify the cost of needed improvements to serve future 
users. The fee is based on the cost per EDU for each capital improvement listed in the above 
table.  The Improvement Fee component of the SDC is thus: 
  

SDC Improvement Fee  =   $1,150 per EDU 
 
 
W-V.  WATER SYSTEM SDC REIMBURSEMENT FEE ASSET SUMMARY 
 
The Reimbursement Fee is intended to quantify the value of existing capacity available to serve 
future demands. The following table lists the current value of each capital improvement 
completed to-date, based on actual costs adjusted to the December 2013 ENR CCI of 9,668, or 
an estimated current value if actual costs are not available. The current value is then divided by 
the capacity in EDU of each existing facility to determine the cost per EDU. 
 
Values for the majority of the existing system improvements were based on the acquisition costs 
provided in the 2013 Capital Asset Inventory prepared by the City of Molalla.  The following 
table lists the replacement value of all existing source, treatment, storage and a summary of 
distribution oversizing for inclusion in the reimbursement fee calculation. 



 

 

City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: New Business  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dan Huff, City Manager   
APPROVED BY:  Dan Huff, City Manager                                               

Subject: Planning Commission Appointment  

Recommendation:   Council Approval 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:     December 17, 2014 

Fiscal Impact:  None   

Background:   
 

Mayor Rogge has requested that Council ratify her appointment of Patricia Torsen to 
the Planning Commission as a voting member. Pat has been with the Planning 
Commission as an out of city non-voting member for some time but her property was 
part of the recent annexation process.   

The open position on the Commission is made possible by the decision to not 
reappoint two (2) Commissioners who have served out their terms. Municipal Code 
Section 16.20.110 provides a general description regarding the process of appointing 
Planning Commission members to the Molalla Planning Commission.  

 



          Community Planning & Dev. 
                                   117 N Molalla Avenue 

                                                                        PO Box 248 
                                            Molalla, Oregon  97038 
                                        Phone: (503) 829‐6855 

                         Fax: (503) 829‐3676 
 

City of Molalla  Community Planning & Development    117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038    (503) 759 0219 
 

 

               

December 14, 2014 
 
Mark Sirois 
Clackamas County Housing & Community Development Division 
Clackamas County Public Services Building 
2051 Kaen Rd. #245 
Oregon City, OR 97045 
 
Dear Mr, Sirois, 
 
I am pleased to submit this letter of support for Molalla’s application to the Community Development 
Block Grant offered by Clackamas County.  
 
The City has dedicated many hours of staff time to conduct this grant proposal, and is organizing the 
necessary resources to execute the proposed projects if it is accepted. Several of our streets are in need 
of rehabilitation, many of them in neighborhoods that are predominantly occupied by low or moderate 
income residents. We are committed to the development of our City, particularly in regards to low‐
income areas, and are excited at the opportunity to implement solutions to our growing problem of 
infrastructure deficiencies. 
 
For these reasons, I am expressing full support of this application for project assistance. Thank you for 
your consideration of these comments.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Debbie Rogge 
Mayor	
City	of	Molalla	
 


	Agenda 121714
	City Council 11.19.14
	Library Mtg. Minutes - 10-16-2014
	Library Carpet
	Library Carpet Purchase
	AB - ProjectAward
	Notice of Intent - Molalla - Stowers
	AB - Scope of Services
	Brown and Caldwell Scope of Service BID 146437_Amend  No  2_SOW and Cost Estimate_2014-12-12_FINAL
	Exhibit A
	Phase 100. Project Management
	Activities: The following activities will be performed as part of the project management phase:
	Deliverables: Monthly invoices with progress reports
	Assumptions: This effort assumes the preparation of one additional amendment.

	Phase 200. Evaluation of Wastewater Treatment Facility
	Task 201.  Operational Evaluation and Report of Findings
	Activities: The following activities will be performed as part of the task:
	Deliverables: Stand-alone letter report with findings and recommendations

	Task 202. Analysis of Current Operating Conditions
	Activities: The following activities will be performed as part of the task:

	Phase 300. Biosolids Authorization Assistance
	Activities: The following activities will be performed relative to the Piuser site:

	Phase 500. Inflow and Infiltration (I/I) Characterization Support
	Task 501.  FY14/15 I/I Support
	Activities: The following activities will be performed relative to this phase:

	Task 502.  FY15/16 I/I Support
	Activities: The following activities will be performed relative to this phase:

	146437_Amend. No. 2_Exhibit B_Cost Estimate_2014-12-11.pdf
	Exhibit B


	AB - ProjectAward_Section St &Water Lines
	Serction St  Waterline Replacement Engineering Proposal
	Molalla SDC FINAL 2014_SS Methodology
	Molalla SDC FINAL 2014_Storm Methodology
	Molalla SDC FINAL 2014_Street Methodology
	Molalla SDC FINAL 2014_Water Methodology
	PC Appointment 12-14
	Support Letter CDBG 2014

